

IMPORTANT NOTICE

The Government Printing Works will not be held responsible for faxed documents not received due to errors on the fax machine or faxes received which are unclear or incomplete. Please be advised that an "OK" slip, received from a fax machine, will not be accepted as proof that documents were received by the GPW for printing. If documents are faxed to the GPW it will be the sender's responsibility to phone and confirm that the documents were received in good order.

Furthermore the Government Printing Works will also not be held responsible for cancellations and amendments which have not been done on original documents received from clients.

CONTENTS • INHOUD

<i>No.</i>		<i>Page No.</i>	<i>Gazette No.</i>
GENERAL NOTICES			
297	Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998: Consolidation, Amendment notice of Notice 125 of 2006.....	3	1965
298	do.: Consolidation, amendment notice of Notice 126 of 2006.....	14	1965
299	do.: Consolidation, amendment notice of Notice 127 of 2006.....	29	1965

GENERAL NOTICES

NOTICE 297 OF 2011

LOCAL GOVERNMENT: MUNICIPAL STRUCTURES ACT, 1998

CONSOLIDATION, AMENDMENT NOTICE OF NOTICE NO. 125 OF 2006 AS AMENDED

I, Madala Backson Masuku, Member of the Executive Council responsible for local government in the Province of Mpumalanga, hereby consolidate, and amend parts of the schedule of a section 12 Notice, Notice No 125 of 2006 published under Gazette No. 1317 of 2006 and other section 12 Notice published between 2006 and 27 May 2011.

Given under my hand at Nelspruit, this 25th day of August 2011.


MR. M. B. MASUKU (MPL)
**MEC: CO-OPERATIVE GOVERNANCE
AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS**

SCHEDULE**PART 2**

[] words in bold type in square brackets indicate omissions from the existing enactments.

_____ Words underlined with solid line indicate insertions in existing enactments.

ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

1. (1) For the district municipal area as a whole a district municipality is hereby established.
[2] **[The part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation notice as a district management area, is to be managed by the district municipality in terms of section 6 as a district management area.]**
[3] **[The part of the district management area determined in the Government Notice No.1594 of 2005 as PMDMA 31 is to be managed by the district municipality in terms of section 6 of the Act as a district management area.]**

CATEGORY

2. The district municipality is a Category C municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The district municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system as contemplated in section 4(b) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000 (Act No. 4 of 2000).

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the district municipality are as indicated by Map No. 188 [Map No. 5] of Government Gazette No. 34445 dated 12 July 2011.

NAME

5. The designated name of the district municipality is Ehlanzeni.

COUNCILLORS

6. The council of the district municipality consist of **[64] 69** councillors as determined in the Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011 of whom; **[Notice No. 11 dated 16 January 2006]**
- (a) **[25] 28** must be proportionally elected councillors;
 - (b) 3 must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 3 of this Schedule;
 - (c) **[13] 15** must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 4 of this Schedule;
 - (d) 2 must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 5 of this Schedule;
 - (e) 8 must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 6 of this Schedule;
 - (f) **[12] 13** must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 7 of this Schedule.

FULLTIME COUNCILLORS

7. The council of the district municipality may designate any of the following office bears as full-time as determined in Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1935 dated 27 May 2011:
- a) Speaker;
 - b) Executive Mayor;
 - c) **[Deputy Mayor]**;
 - d) **[6] 8** Members of the Mayoral Committee; and
 - e) A Whip.

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in **[Nelspruit] Mbombela**.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR THE FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality **[prior to] after** 1 March 2006, until reviewed by new council.

PART 3**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 321, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The [new] local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as redefined in terms of the demarcation Notice No. 293 of 2008 and Provincial Notice No. 674 of 2007 with Gazette No. 1488 and as indicated by Map No. 189 [Map No.17] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Thaba Chweu.

COUNCILLORS

6. The council of the local municipality consists of [11] 13 proportionally elected councillors and [12] 14 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011 [Notice No. 5 of 28 April 2000.] The council of the local municipality may designate any of the following office-bearers as full-time as determined in the Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1935 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker
- (b) Executive Mayor; and

(c) **[2] 3** Members of the Mayoral Committee

(d) A whip.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has **[12] 14 [wards with the boundaries]** as indicated in Provincial Notice No.53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011 [Notice No.170 dated 9 June 2000.]

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Lydenburg.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality [prior to] after 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 4

ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 322, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area are as redefined in terms demarcation Notice No. 293 of 2008 and Provincial Notice No 674 of 2007 with Gazette 1488 and as indicated by Map No. 190 [Map No. 18] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Mbombela.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The council of the local municipality consists of **[35] 39** proportionally elected councillors and **[36] 39** ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 5 of 28 April 2000.]
- (2) The council of the local municipality may designate any of the following office-bearers as full-time as determined in the Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 27 May 2011:
- (a) Speaker;
 - (b) Executive Mayor;
 - (c) **[Deputy Mayor];**
 - (d) **[5] 9** Members of the Mayoral Committee; and
 - (e) A Whip.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has **[36] 39** wards **[with the boundaries]** as indicated in Provincial Notice No.53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011 [Notice No.171 of 9 June 2000.]

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in **[Nelspruit] Mbombela.**

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality **[prior to] after** 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 5**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 323 a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No.191 [Map No.19] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Umjindi.

COUNCILLORS

6. The Council of the local municipality consists of [7] 9 proportionally elected councillors and [7] 9 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011 [P Notice No. 172 of 9 June 2000.] The council of the local municipality may designate any of the following office-bearers as full-time as determined in Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No 1935 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker
- (b) Executive Mayor; and
- (c) [2] 3 Members of the Mayoral Committee.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has [7] 9 wards [with the boundaries] as indicated Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011 [Provincial Notice No.165 of 9 June 2000].

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Barberton.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality [prior to] after the 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 6**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 324, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a category is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality are as redefine in terms of the demarcation Notice No 293 of 2008 and Provincial Notice No. 674 with Gazette No. 1488 and as indicated by Map No. 192 [Map No. 20] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Nkomazi.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The council of the local municipality consists of [30] 32 proportionally elected councillors and [30] 33 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011[Provincial Notice No. 5 dated 28 April 2000]
- (2) The Council of the local municipality may designate the following office bearers as full-time as determined in Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No 1935 dated 27 May 2011:
- (a) Speaker
 - (b) Executive Mayor, and
 - (c) [5] 7 Members of the Mayoral Committee and;
 - (d) A Whip

WARDS

7. The local municipality has [30] 33 wards [with the boundaries] as indicated in Provincial Notice No.53 of 18 February 2011 in Provincial Notice No.53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011 [Notice No.173 of 9 June 2000].

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Malelane.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality [prior to] after the 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 7**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITIES**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 325, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area are as redefined in terms of the demarcation Notice No. 293 of 2008 and the Provincial Notice No. 674 of 2007 with Gazette No. 1488 and as indicated by Map No. 193 [Map No. 24] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The name of the local municipality is Bushbuckridge.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The Council of the local municipality consists of ~~[34]~~ 37 proportionally elected councillors and ~~[34]~~ 37 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 1905 of 18 February 2011 [Notice No. 259 dated 05 September 2000]
- (2) The council of the local municipality may designate the following office bearers as full-time as determined in the Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 27 May 2011:
 - (a) Speaker;
 - (b) Executive Mayor;
 - (c) ~~[5]~~ 7 Members of the Mayoral Committee; and
 - (c) A whip.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has [34] 37 wards [with the boundaries] as indicated in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011 [Notice No.175 dated 10 June 2000].

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in [Mkhuhlu] Bushbuckridge.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality [prior to] after the 1st March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

INCONSISTENCY BETWEEN NOTICES

10. This notice shall supersede any notice published in terms of section 12 of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 which may to the extent of the provision of this notice and relating to the establishment, category, type, boundaries, name, Councillors, seat of Municipality and standing rules and orders for first meetings, be contradictory to this notice.

NOTICE 298 OF 2011**LOCAL GOVERNMENT: MUNICIPAL STRUCTURES ACT, 1998
CONSOLIDATION, AMENDMENT NOTICE OF NOTICE NO. 126 OF 2006 AS
AMENDED**

I, Madala Backson Masuku, Member of the Executive Council responsible for local government in the Province of Mpumalanga, hereby consolidate, and amend parts of the schedule of a section 12 Notice, Notice No 126 of 2006 published under Gazette No. 1317 of 2006 and other section 12 Notice published between 2006 and 27 May 2011.

Given under my hand at Nelspruit, this 25 day of August 2011.


MR. M. B. MASUKU (MPL)
**MEC: CO-OPERATIVE GOVERNANCE
AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS**

SCHEDULE**PART 2**

[] Words in bold type in square brackets indicate omissions from the existing enactments.

 Words underlined with solid line indicate insertion in existing enactments.

ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

1. (1) For the district municipal area as a whole a district municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The district municipality is a Category C municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The district municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system as contemplated in section 4(b) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000 (Act No. 4 of 2000).

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the district municipality are as indicated by Map No 173 **[Map No. 1]** of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the district municipality is Gert Sibande.

COUNCILLORS

6. The council of the district municipality consist of **[47] 48** councillors as determined in the Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011 [Notice No. 11 dated 16 January 2006] of whom-
- (a) 19 must be proportionally elected councillors;
 - (b) **[5] 6** must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 3 of this Schedule;
 - (c) 4 must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 4 of this Schedule;
 - (d) 4 must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 5 of this Schedule;
 - (e) 2 must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 6 of this Schedule;
 - (f) 3 must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 7 of this Schedule;
 - (g) **[2] 1** must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 8 of this Schedule;
 - (h) **[8] 9** must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 9 of this Schedule;

FULLTIME COUNCILLORS

7. The council of the district municipality may designate any of the following office-bearers as full-time as determined in Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1935 dated 27 May 2011:
- a) Speaker;
 - b) Executive Mayor;
 - c) **[6] 8** Members of the Mayoral Committee; and
 - d) A Whip.

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in **[Secunda]** Ermele.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR THE FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality **[prior to]** after 1 March 2006, until reviewed by new council.

PART 3**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation notice as MP 301, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No. 174 **[Map No. 4]** of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality **[Albert Luthuli]** Chief Albert Luthuli.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The council of the local municipality consists of **[22]** 24 proportionally elected councillors and **[22]** 25 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of

2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 5 of 28 April 2000.]

(2) The council of the local municipality may designate any of the following office-bearers as full-time as determined in the Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1935 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker;
- (b) Executive Mayor;
- (c) ~~[3]~~ 7 Members of the Mayoral Committee; and
- (d) A Whip.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has ~~[22]~~ 25 wards [with the boundaries] as indicated in Provincial Notice No. ~~53~~ of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 157 of 9 June 2000.]

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Carolina.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality ~~[prior to]~~ after 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 4

ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation notice as MP 302, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No. 175 [Map No. 5] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Msukaligwa.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The council of the local municipality consists of ~~[35]~~ 39 proportionally elected councillors and ~~[36]~~ 39 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 5 of 28 April 2000.]

(2) The council of the local municipality may designate any of the following office-bearers as full-time as determined in the Provincial Notice No.136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker;
- (b) Executive Mayor;
- (c) ~~[2]~~ 5 Members of the Mayoral Committee; and
- (d) A Whip.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has ~~[16]~~ 19 wards **[with the boundaries]** as indicated in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 168 of 9 June 2000.]

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Ermelo.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality **[prior to] after** 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 5**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 303 a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No. 176 [Map No. 6] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Mkhondo.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The Council of the local municipality consists of **[15] 19** proportionally elected councillors and **[15] 19** ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 5 dated 28 April 2000.]

(2) The council of the local municipality may designate any of the following office-bearers as full-time as determined in Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No 1935 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker
- (b) Executive Mayor; and
- (c) [2] 5 Members of the Mayoral Committee; [and]
- (d) A Whip.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has [15] 19 wards [with the boundaries] as indicated in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 158 of 9 June 2000.]

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Piet Retief.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality [prior to] after 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 6

ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 304, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a category is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality are as indicated by Map No. 177 [Map No. 7] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is **[Pixley ka Seme.]** Dr Pixley ka Isaka Seme.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The council of the local municipality consists of 10 proportionally elected councillors and 11 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No.5 dated 28 April 2000.]

(2) The Council of the local municipality may designate the following office bearers as full-time as determined in Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No 1935 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker
- (b) Executive Mayor; and
- (c) **[2] 3 Members of the Mayoral Committee];and**
- (d) **A Whip.]**

WARDS

7. The local municipality has 11 wards **[with the boundaries]** as indicated in Provincial Notice No.1905 of 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 24 of 10 March 2000.]

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Volksrust.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality [~~prior to~~] after 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 7**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 305, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No.178 [Map No. 8] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Lekwa.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The council of the local municipality consists of **[13] 15** proportionally elected councillors and **[14] 15** ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No.5 dated 28 April 2000.]

(2) The council of the local municipality may designate the following office bearers as full-time as determined in the Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker;
- (b) Executive Mayor; **[and]**
- (c) **[2] 4** Members of the Mayoral Committee **]; and**
- (d) **A Whip.]**

WARDS

7. The local municipality has **[14] 15** wards **[with the boundaries]** as indicated in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 160 of 9 June 2000.]

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Standerton.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality **[prior to] after** 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 8**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 306, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No. 179 [Map No. 9] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Dipaleseng.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The Council of the local municipality consists of [~~5~~] 6 proportionally elected councillors and 6 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 5 dated 28 April 2000.]

(2) The council of the local municipality may designate the following office bearers as full-time as determined in the Provincial Notice No.136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker;
- (b) Executive Mayor; and
- (c) 2 Members of the Mayoral Committee.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has 6 wards [with the boundaries] as indicated in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011, [Notice No.169 of 9 June 2000].

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Balfour.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality [prior to] after 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 9**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 307 a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No.180 [Map No. 10] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Govan Mbeki.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The council of the local municipality consists of **[30]** 31 proportionally elected councillors and **[31]** 32 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No.5 dated 28 April 2000.]

(2) The council of the local municipality may designate the following office bearers as full-time as determined in the Provincial Notice No.136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker;
- (b) Executive Mayor;
- [(c) Deputy Mayor]**
- (d) **[5]** 7 Members of the Mayoral Committee; and
- (e) A Whip.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has **[31]** 32 wards **[with the boundaries]** as indicated in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 160 of 9 June 2000.]

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Secunda.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality **[prior to]** after 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

INCONSISTENCY BETWEEN NOTICES

10. This notice shall supersede any notice published in terms of section 12 of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 [2000] which may to the extent of the provisions of this notice and relating to the establishment, category, type, boundaries, name, Councillors, seat of Municipality and standing rules and orders for first meetings, be contradictory to this notice.

NOTICE 299 OF 2011**LOCAL GOVERNMENT: MUNICIPAL STRUCTURES ACT, 1998****CONSOLIDATION, AMENDMENT NOTICE OF NOTICE NO. 127 OF 2006 AS
AMENDED**

I, Madala Backson Masuku, Member of the Executive Council responsible for local government in the Province of Mpumalanga, hereby consolidate, and amend parts of the schedule of a section 12 Notice, Notice No 127 of 2006 published under Gazette No. 1317 of 2006 and other section 12 Notice published between 2006 and 27 May 2011.

Given under my hand at Nelspruit, this 25th day of August 2011.


MR. M.B. MASUKU (MPL)
MEC: CO-OPERATIVE GOVERNANCE
AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS

SCHEDULE**PART 2**

[] Words in bold type in square brackets indicate omissions from the existing enactments.

_____ Words underline with solid line indicate insertions in existing enactments.

ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

1. For the district municipal area as a whole a district municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The district municipality is a Category C municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The district municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system as contemplated in section 4(b) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000 (Act No. 4 of 2000).

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the district municipality are as indicated by Map No. 181 [Map No. 2] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the district municipality is Nkangala.

COUNCILLORS

6. The council of the district municipality consist of **[55] 59** councillors as determined in the Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011 of whom: **[Notice No. 11 dated 16 January 2006]**
- (a) **[22] 24** must be proportionally elected councillors;
 - (b) 2 must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 3 of this Schedule;
 - (c) **[9]10** must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 4 of this Schedule;
 - (d) 6 must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 5 of this Schedule;
 - (e) **[1] 2** must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 6 of this Schedule;
 - (f) 8 must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 7 of this Schedule;
 - (g) 7 must be appointed by the local municipality mentioned in Part 8 of this Schedule.

FULLTIME COUNCILLORS

7. The council of the district municipality may designate any of the following office bearers as full- time as determined in Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1935 dated 27 May 2011:
- a) Speaker;
 - b) Executive Mayor;
 - c) **[6] 8** Members of the Mayoral Committee; and
 - d) A Whip.

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Middelburg.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality **[prior to] after** 1 March 2006, until reviewed by new council.

PART 3**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 311, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No. 182 [Map No. 11] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is [Delmas] Victor Khanye.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The Council of the local municipality consists of [7] 8 proportionally elected councillors and [8] 9 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011, [Notice No. 5 of 28 April 2000.]

(2) The council of the local municipality may designate any of the following office-bearers as full-time as determined in the Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1935 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker;
- (b) Executive Mayor; and
- (c) [2] 3 Members of the Mayoral Committee [and

(d) [A Whip].

WARDS

7. The local municipality has [8] 9 wards [with the boundaries] as determined in Provincial Notice No.53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No.163 of 9 June 2000.].

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Delmas.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality [prior to] after 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 4

ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 312, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No. 183 [Map No. 12] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Emalahleni.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The Council of the local municipality consists of ~~[32]~~ 34 proportionally elected councillors and ~~[32]~~ 34 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 5 of 28 April 2000.]

(2) The council of the local municipality may designate any of the following office-bearers as full-time as determined in the Provincial Notice No.136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker;
- (b) Executive Mayor;
- (c) ~~[5]~~ 8 Members of the Mayoral Committee; and
- (d) A Whip.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has ~~[32]~~ 34 wards [with the boundaries] as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No.164 of 9 June 2000.]

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in ~~[Witbank]~~ Emalahleni.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality ~~[prior to]~~ after 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 5**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 313 a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No.184 [Map No. 13] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Steve Tshwete.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The Council of the local municipality consists of ~~[23]~~ 29 proportionally elected councillors and ~~[24]~~ 29 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. ~~[Notice No. 5 dated 28 April 2000.]~~

(2) The council of the local municipality may designate any of the following office-bearers as full-time as determined in Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No 1935 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker
- (b) Executive Mayor;
- (c) **[6] 8** Members of the Mayoral Committee; and
- (d) A Whip.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has **[24] 29** wards~~[with the boundaries]~~ as indicated in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. ~~[Notice No.165 of 9 June 2000.]~~

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Middelburg.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality ~~[prior to]~~ after 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 6

ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 314, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a category is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The focal municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality are as indicated by Map No.185 **[Map No. 14]** of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Emakhazeni.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The council of the local municipality consists of **[6] 7** proportionally elected councillors and **[7] 8** ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. **[Notice No. 5 dated 28 April 2000.]**
- (2) The Council of the local municipality may designate the following office bearers as full-time as determined in Provincial Notice No. 136 of 2011 published under Gazette No 1935 dated 27 May 2011:
- (a) Speaker
 - (b) Executive Mayor; and
 - (c) **[2] 3** Members of the Mayoral Committee.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has **[7] 8** wards **[with the boundaries]** as indicated in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. **[Notice No.166 of 9 June 2000].**

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Belfast.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality **[prior to] after** 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 7**ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY**

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 315, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No. 186 **[Map No. 15]** of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The name of the local municipality is Thembisile Hani.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1)The Council of the local municipality consists of **[30] 32** proportionally elected councillors and **[30] 32** ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011.**[Notice No. 5 of 28 April 2000.]**

(2) The council of the local municipality may designate the following office bearers as full-time as determined in Provincial Notice No.136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker;
- (b) Executive Mayor;
- (c) **[5] 7** Members of the Mayoral Committee; and
- (d) A Whip.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has **[30] 32** wards **[with the boundaries]** as indicated in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. **[Notice No.167 of 9 June 2000]**.

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Kwamhlanga.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality **[prior to] after** 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.

PART 8

ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

1. For that part of the district municipal area determined in the demarcation Notice as MP 316, a local municipality is hereby established.

CATEGORY

2. The local municipality is a Category B municipality as defined in section 155(1) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and determined by the Demarcation Board in terms of section 4 of the Act.

TYPE

3. The local municipality is a municipality with a mayoral executive system combined with a ward participatory system contemplated in section 3(c) of the Mpumalanga Further Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000.

BOUNDARIES

4. The boundaries of the local municipality area as indicated by Map No. 187 [Map No. 16] of the demarcation notice.

NAME

5. The designated name of the local municipality is Dr J.S. Moroka.

COUNCILLORS

6. (1) The Council of the local municipality consists of ~~[30]~~ 31 proportionally elected councillors and ~~[30]~~ 31 ward councillors as determined in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011. [Notice No. 5 of 28 April 2000.]

(2) The council of the local municipality may designate any of the following office bearers as full-time as determined in the Provincial Notice No.136 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 27 May 2011:

- (a) Speaker;
- (b) Executive Mayor, and
- (c) ~~[5]~~ 7 Members of the Mayoral Committee
- (d) A Whip.

WARDS

7. The local municipality has ~~[30]~~ 31 wards **[with the boundaries]** as indicated in Provincial Notice No. 53 of 2011 published under Gazette No. 1905 dated 18 February 2011, Provincial Notice No.1905 of 18 February 2011.[Notice No.169 of 9 June 2000.]

SEAT OF MUNICIPALITY

8. The seat of the municipality is in Mdutjana.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR FIRST MEETING

9. *The standing rules and orders of the municipality are those which were adopted by the municipality [prior to] after 1 March 2006, until reviewed by the new Council.*

INCONSISTENCY BETWEEN NOTICES

10. This notice shall supersede any notice published in terms of section 12 of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 [2000] which may to the extent of the provisions of this notice and relating to the establishment, category, type, boundaries, name, Councillors, seat of Municipality and standing rules and orders for first meetings, be contradictory to this notice.
-

Printed by and obtainable from the Government Printer, Bosman Street, Private Bag X85, Pretoria, 0001. Tel. (012) 334-4507, 334-4511, 334-4509, 334-4515
Also available at the **Provincial Legislature: Mpumalanga**, Private Bag X11289, Room 114, Civic Centre Building, Nel Street, Nelspruit, 1200. Tel. (01311) 5-2133
Gedruk deur en verkrygbaar by die Staatsdrukker, Bosmanstraat, Privaat Sak X85, Pretoria, 0001. Tel. (012) 334-4507, 334-4511, 334-4509, 334-4515
Ook verkrygbaar by die **Provinsiale Wetgewer: Mpumalanga**, Privaat Sak X11289, Kamer 114, Burgersentrum, Nelstraat, Nelspruit, 1200. Tel. (01311) 5-2133